Public Notice of Meeting WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE SCHOOL BOARD MEETING

Tuesday, January 21, 2025 Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative M/H School 6:30 p.m.

Videoconferencing: meet.google.com/btv-ouzy-ivu

Audio: +1 502-547-4514 PIN: 204 872 239#

All videoconferencing options may be subject to modifications. Please check <u>www.sau63.org</u> for the latest information.

- I. CALL TO ORDER-Dennis Golding-Chair
- II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
- III. STUDENT or STAFF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
- IV. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA
- V. PUBLIC COMMENTS: This is the public's opportunity to speak to items on the agenda. In the interest of preserving individual privacy and due process rights, the Board requests that comments (including complaints) regarding individual employees or students be directed to the Superintendent in accord with the processes set forth in School Board Policies KE, KEB and BEDH.
- VI. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE
 - a. Reports
 - i. Business Administrator's Report
- VII. YTD REPORTING
- VIII. BOARD BUDGET/WARRANT ARTICLES
- IX. POLICIES
 - a. 3rd Reading
 - i. EH-R-Public Access to School District Records-Procedures for Public Access to District records "Right to Know Requests"
- X. ACTION ITEMS
 - a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting
- XI. COMMITTEE REPORTS
 - i. Budget Liaison
- XII. PUBLIC COMMENTS
- XIII. SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS
- XIV. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C)
 - i. Review the Nonpublic Minutes
- XV. ADJOURNMENT

INFORMATION: Next School Board Meeting-February 4, 6:30 PM at WLC

EH-R - PUBLIC ACCESS TO SCHOOL DISTRICT RECORDS-PROCEDURES FOR PUBLIC ACCESS TO DISTRICT RECORDS "RIGHT TO KNOW REQUESTS"

Category Required

- 1. **Board and Staff Member Responsibilities**. All requests for access to or copies of District records should be made through the SAU office. Any board member or staff member who receives a request from a member of the public to see, receive or otherwise inspect any District record(s) ("Right to Know request") should immediately communicate that request to the SAU office for processing under Board policy EH and these procedures.
- 2. Written Requests-Required. To help ensure common understanding between the requester and the staff responsible for responding to a request, persons making requests for records are required to submit their requests in writing and include a specific description of the desired record(s).
- 3. Clarification, Refinement & Modification of Requests. Carefully tailored requests can often be fulfilled more promptly and help avoid resources being expended retrieving and preparing material which exceeds what the requester is actually seeking. The Superintendent, designee or staff responsible for responding to a request may contact the person making the request if the request is unclear or will be time-consuming or onerous to fulfill to determine if the person will clarify the request or agree to narrow the request. Staff responsible for responding to the request may suggest to the requestor reasonable modifications to the scope or language of the request, but the requester is not required to accept them. Any modification, clarification or narrowing of the request agreed upon by the requester shall be documented in writing and a copy of the re-formed request provided to the person making the request.
- 4. Record Availability. Records requested under the Right-to-Know law which are not exempt under RSA 91-A:5 (or otherwise) will be made available immediately when such records are so available for such release. If such records are not immediately available, if a determination needs to be made if such records exist, or if a determination needs to be made whether such records are exempt from public disclosure, the Superintendent or designee will, within five (5) business days of the request, respond to the requestor, in writing. The response shall acknowledge receipt of the request, provide a statement of the time reasonably necessary to determine whether the request shall be granted or denied, and include an itemized estimate of the cost of making the record available. Records will be reviewed in their entirety by either the Superintendent or his/her designee before they are released in order to ensure that no confidential or exempted information is disclosed. District legal counsel may be consulted as necessary.
- 5. Exempt Information and Redaction. Information exempt from disclosure by RSA 91-A:5 or other law will not be disclosed. The Superintendent may authorize District staff to consult with the District's legal counsel when questions regarding application of exemptions to certain records or information arise.

In some instances, records containing information exempt from disclosure may reasonably be redacted in order to make the remainder of the record accessible.

If a member of the public requests records that are determined to include information exempt from disclosure, the Superintendent/designee will respond to the requestor, in writing, including a statement of the specific exemption authorizing the withholding, and a brief explanation of how the exemption applies to the record(s) or information withheld.

Records will be reviewed in their entirety by either the Superintendent/designee before they are released in

order to ensure that no confidential or exempted information is disclosed.

- 6. Copy Fees. The School District will charge a fee of \$0.25/page for copying/photocopies of records when the person requests a paper copy. This fee reflects the actual cost of producing the copy(ies). No cost or fee shall be charged for the inspection or delivery, without copying of records, whether in paper, electronic, or other form except as described below for certain individual electronic communications. Any costs associated with mailing copies if available must be paid for in advance of mailing.
- 7. <u>Electronic Records</u>. Electronic records (including electronic communications as defined in Section 8) may be provided on a portable storage device (thumb drive), if the requestor so requests and if such records can practically be delivered electronically. To protect the integrity of the District's computer system, a thumb drive for this purpose must be provided by the requestor in unopened manufacturer's packaging.
- 8. <u>Charges for Certain Electronic Communications.</u> In addition to the copying fees permitted under paragraph 6, the District may charge a reasonable fee prior to disclosing certain electronic communications as set forth in this Section.
 - a. <u>Definitions</u>. For purposes of this Policy, the terms below will have the definitions provided.
 - "Individual electronic communication" includes the communication itself as well as the responses and attachments to each communication, under a single subject line. However, text or chat message threads regarding the same topic shall be considered an individual electronic communication unless the thread exceeds 50 individual messages, at which point each additional group of 50 messages will be a separate individual electronic communication.
 - "Media requestors" means organizations or individuals who publish information in accepted digital, print, or broadcast formats and to standards generally recognized by professional news organizations that do not serve primarily as a platform to promote the interest and/or opinions of a special interest group, government, individual or cause.
 - b. <u>Digital Communication Charges</u>. The District will charge \$0.25/ per individual electronic communication, regardless of whether the records are delivered in hard copy or electronically, subject to the following:
 - i. No charge shall be issued for the first 250 individual electronic communications
 - ii. Multiple requests from any person or entity to the same public body within a 30-day time period (measured from the date of the first request) shall be considered a single request (i.e. in the aggregate;
 - iii. The charge shall be paid prior to any copies of electronic communications exceeding the first 250 individual electronic communications (as described above).
 - c. Waiver of Digital Communication Charges. Waiver of digital communication charges is available as set forth below. It is up to the person or entity making the records request to apply for and establish the waiver using the District's Waiver of Electronic Communication Record Charge Form EH-F(1) ("Waiver Request Form"). The Waiver Request Form may be filed at any time, but it is required after the requester receives the cost estimate for the charges and before the requested records are copied and made available). The waiver is available to requestors falling into one or more of the following categories:

- i. Any individual who can establish indigency as established by the federal poverty line (published each year by the Federal Department of Health and Human Services). For purposes of establishing indigency, individuals may use:
 - 1. copies of documentation submitted to or received from state or federal benefits agencies dated within 9 months;
 - 2. a completed "Financial Affidavit for Waiver of Electronic Communication Charge" EH-F(2); or
 - 3. other documents or evidence satisfactory to the Superintendent or Superintendent's designee.
- ii. A media requestor or authorized representative of a media requester (satisfactory evidence of the status must be produced with the **Waiver Request Form**).
- iii. Any individual or entity who can establish that the disclosure of requested information requesting information is likely to contribute significantly to public understanding of the operations or activities of the district, its officials and its schools, and is not primarily in the commercial interest of the requestor. For purposes of meeting the criteria, the requestor must complete the pertinent section of the **Waiver Request Form**. In deciding whether the fee should be waived under this criteria, the Superintendent/designee will consider the following factors:
 - 1. The subject of the request must concern identifiable operations or activities of the District, with a connection that is direct and clear, not remote or attenuated.
 - 2. The disclosable portions of the requested records must be meaningfully informative about government operations or activities to be "likely to contribute" to an increased public understanding of those operations or activities. Information that is already in the public domain, in either the same or a substantially identical form, would not contribute to such understanding.
 - 3. The disclosure must contribute to the understanding of a reasonably broad audience of persons interested in the subject, as opposed to the requestor's individual understanding.
 - 4. It should appear likely that the public's understanding of the subject will be enhanced to a significant extent by the disclosure.

First reading: December 17, 2024 Second reading: January 7, 2025

Third reading/adopted: District revision history:

Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the policy.

NH Statutes Description

RSA 91-A New Hampshire Right To Know Law ("Access to Governmental

Records and Meetings)

Cross References

CodeDescriptionBEDGMeeting Minutes

EHB Data/Records Retention

EHB-R(1) Data/Records Retention - Local Records Retention Schedule

JRA <u>Student Records and Access (FERPA)</u>

JRA-R(1) <u>Student Records and Access (FERPA)</u>

WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE 1 2 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING Tuesday, January 7, 2025 3 Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative M/H School 4 5 6:30 p.m. 6 7 The videoconferencing link was published several places including on the meeting agenda. 8 Present: Dennis Golding, Brianne Lavallee, John Zavgren, Michelle Allev, Tiffany Cloutier-Cabral, Darlene 9 10 Anzalone, Diane Foss, and Jonathan Lavoie 11 Superintendent Peter Weaver, Business Administrator Kristie LaPlante, Principals Tom Ronning and Principal 12 Bridgette Fuller, Assistant Principal Katie Gosselin, Technology Director Nicholas Buroker, and Clerk Kristina 13 Fowler 14 15 CALL TO ORDER 16 I. Chairman Golding called the meeting to order at 6:30pm. 17 18 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 19 II. 20 The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 21 22 III. STUDENT/STAFF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT Principal Fuller and Principal Ronning honored staff with nominations for the Starfish Award and spoke of the 23 reasons they were nominated. The nominees are Kristin Dame, Buddy Erb, Katie Gosselin, Linda Draper, Alice 24 Bartoldus, Taryn Anderson, Joe Sullivan, Laura Seale, and Vicki MacPherson. Vicki MacPherson was chosen as 25 December's recipient. Principal Fuller commented through the years, Ms. MacPherson has touched the lives of 26 27 countless students and shows her students that they matter every single day! Ms. MacPherson was congratulated and 28 given a round of applause. 29 IV. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 30 Superintendent requested to add a nonpublic session regarding a personnel matter. 31 32 A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral to accept the adjustments to the 33 agenda. 34 35 Voting: all aye, motion carried. 36 PUBLIC COMMENTS 37 The public comment section of the agenda was read. Superintendent called out all the phone numbers and names 38 joined in the meeting asking if they wanted to comment. 39 40 Ms. Mary Golding commented, wow, regarding the list of nominees for the starfish award. She doesn't know how 41 you can pick one of them, as they are all amazing. Kudos to all of them. Kudos to a young man named Cade that she 42 met today, Superintendent Weaver may know him, who was helping at FRES, and he is a wonderful young man. 43 Thank you for always being so supportive to the school, students and staff; you are a great Board and are 44 appreciated. 45 46 VI. 47 **BOARD CORRESPONDENCE** 48 a. Reports i. WLCTA Report 49 Ms. Rosana reported for WLC. 50

> Teachers are working to prepare students for midterms and continue to uphold rigor

Teachers have been using PLC time to discuss, create, and edit midterms

iReady testing January 6-9

Midterms January 15-17

51

52 53

- New semester begins Jan. 21- teachers are working to prepare for any new classes beginning
 - NHS continuing to provide monthly tutoring for MS students in all subjects
 - NHS and Mr. Comerford working together to provide weekly Math tutoring during WIN which is open to all students.
 - Students going on the France/UK trip in 2026 raised approx. \$1,500 towards their trip with the Double Good Popcorn fundraiser; thank you to all of those who contributed!
 - Unified Arts teachers held a Holiday Fair on Dec. 13 at town hall– kids had a great time! Special thank you to Emily Hall and Olympia Clark
 - Danyele Manning spearheaded our Winter Pep Rally on Dec. 20th– the kids and faculty had a great time!

Ms. Kudlich reported for FRES/LCS.

- FRES and LCS will be hosting the New Hampshire Dance Institute for a residency from January 15th to the 22nd. Students will be dancing every day and putting together a performance for the 22nd, which will be on Wednesday, January 22nd, in the WLC gym.
- FRES will be hosting the Scripps Spelling Bee on Thursday, January 23rd at 8:15. Throughout the first two weeks of January 3rd, 4th, and 5th grade students will be competing in classroom competitions, and the top three students from each classroom will move on to compete in the school-wide competition. We are looking for community members to volunteer as judges for this event, so if you are interested please email Morgan Kudlich at m.kudlich@sau63.org.
- The FRES/LCS PTO is hosting a Read-A-Thon starting on January 13th to encourage students to read more. You can register your reader at the following link: https://www.read-thon.com/readers/r/323831373239/.
- Second quarter wraps up on January 17th, and learning profiles will go home on January 24th. We are officially halfway through the year, and students will be completing mid-year benchmark testing to make sure they are on track to meet their goals for this year. Teachers will be meeting to go over data once testing is complete to shape their plans for the rest of the year and make sure any weak spots are being reinforced.
- 4th graders will be going on a field trip this month to the state capitol in Concord to learn more about our government and state. This is a yearly trip for them and they have fun seeing how our government works.
- 5th graders will be going on a field trip this month to the Science Museum in Boston.
- This Friday the PTO is hosting a Skate Night at FRES in the gym from 5:30pm-7:30pm. The theme is glow party, wear "glowy" things or wear white to glow under the lights.

Ms. Lavallee commented that she is working on the annual report, looking at data and just being in the schools too, she wanted to say thank you to the teachers. She can tell the teachers are working hard and it is not just during school hours, but all the extras you are doing afterschool whether it is for a trip, fund raising etc. and acknowledge the asset you are. You are making a difference and she can see it. Ms. Kudlich acknowledged it is always wonderful to hear that and expressed it does means a lot. Chairman Golding asked regarding the 4th grade trip if they get in touch with any local representatives before they go to the state house to see if they could give the students a tour and guide them around. He is sure there is an ex-school board member who would probably enjoy that. Ms. Kudlich responded yes, she believes they do that and the students interact with the people who work there and do some sort of activity with them. They may still be looking for chaperones.

ii. Principal's Report

Principal Fuller gave a shout out to Ms. Kudlich who was monumental getting those activities scheduled and planned, the Spelling Bee, NHDI and Read-A-Thon. Ms. Lavallee commented she loves the addition of the photos to the report. She enjoyed attending the holiday concert and loved seeing the new curtains, it makes a significant difference, it builds community pride and thanks to facilities for taking care of that.

Principal Ronning reported that Ms. Rosana shared a lot of the same material. He voiced that one of the things that WLC has set out to do is support the community; they have really supported us. One of the ways that came up is Baseball Coach Levesque works with Sleep in Heavenly Peace and he wondered if there was a way we could raise pillows for kids in need. We did a Pillow Drive with the goal of 100 pillows and we raised 168 pillows. He thanked the community, those who donated, and Coach Levesque who put it together for us. He expressed often during the

holidays families can struggle; we had community members, staff, retired staff, the Women's Club and American 105 Legion family who donated money and gift certificates to our school so we could help families in our community in 106 107 need. The community really supports us and when they have needs, we want to be there to help. He thanked all those 108 who donated. Last Friday, was the gym dedication to Dave Finch, former teacher, coach and athletic director. 109 Principal Ronning was not able to be present; he was out sick but heard it was quite a moving ceremony. Assistant Principal Gosselin and Linda Draper did a lot of work organizing it and put a lot of work into it. When you look at 110 111 people who dedicate their lives to education or especially to one community it's great that we were able to recognize him for what he has done for us. Ms. Lavallee thanked staff for letting her come in to help with the holiday meal and 112 she gave a shout out to the student volunteers that helped with that. It was great to see them in action. She sees the 113 benefit of how that experience has matured them and prepares them for later in life. She thanked the dance team for 114 all the work they did preparing for the Nutcracker; it was disappointing we were not able to see it this year. Principal 115 Ronning informed the group it was rescheduled to January 15. He thanked Ms. Lavallee for helping us. Regarding 116 the Washington, D.C. trip for students, he requested the Board authorize use of unspent funds of up to \$2,600 to use 117 118 to offset the cost for students as several students have dropped out and it raised the cost to those going. The original cost to students was \$1,115 and since then it has increased by \$155 costing \$1,270 due to several students not being 119 able to go. He is asking the Board to approve this so that students going would pay the original cost and not have to 120 absorb the cost of the other students who are not going. He would really hate to ask families to come up with the 121 122 additional funds, it may result in additional students not going and that would have a ripple effect. He is hoping to be 123 able to use unspent from the end of the year. A question was raised how he would use it. He confirms it is to defray the cost to those students who are going. We had to lock in the price and then had students drop out; we still have to 124 pay that original amount regardless. He prefers not to put that additional onto the students. Ms. Foss voiced she 125 126 would be supportive to this and understands sometimes people have to drop out and it is already an expensive trip. A question was raised if a plea has been put out to see if any other students want to take their place. Principal Ronning 127 explains we had already opened it up to additional grades and now is open to grades 9-12 and no other students have 128 129 come forward. He was asked what his plan is if the Board does not authorize it. Principal Ronning indicated if he had to pay it out of pocket, he would and could go to the community etc. but his first step is to ask the Board. Ms. 130 131 Anzalone recused herself from the vote as her son is going on the trip.

A MOTION was made by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral and SECONDED by Ms. Foss to use \$2,600 in unspent funds for the Washington, D.C. trip.

Mr. Lavoie asked Ms. LaPlante if this is possible, if she is ok with it and if she thinks it is a good idea. She asks the Board to rephrase the term unspent funds as that is what we typically use later. She had spoken with Principal Ronning asking if we could allocate any funds toward it. She then spoke with Superintendent Weaver regarding this and we were not comfortable without the Board's feedback because it is funding for a trip we would not otherwise fund, we don't want to set precedence. She would be looking for the Board to approve overspending the existing line so we can get students on the trip without further impacting them financially, not necessarily "unspent funds" but authorization to overrun the line.

Ms. Cloutier-Cabral AMMENDS her MOTION to authorize overspending the line up to the amount of \$2,600 to be used for the Washington, D.C. trip, Ms. Foss SECONDS.

A question was raised how many students are going. Principal Ronning confirms he does not have the number of students going with him at this time.

Voting: all aye; motion carried.

132

133134

135

136

137138

139

140 141

142

143144

145

146 147

148

149 150

151 152

153

154

155 156

157 158

159 160

VII. BOARD BUDGET/WARRANT DISCUSSION

Chairman Golding questioned if there has been any movement at all on the warrant articles. Ms. LaPlante confirms there has not been any formal movement. We have been looking at the budget to see what we can trim here and there and will present to the Budget Committee a budget with an increase of about 4.15% next Tuesday when they meet. Chairman Golding asked the members if there are any questions or anything we have not discussed, none heard.

VIII. POLICIES

a. 2ND READ

i. BDFF-Facilities Committee Goals and Preparation of Capital Improvement Plan

162 163	heard.
164 165	A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by Ms. Foss to approve policy BDFF-Facilities Committee Goals and Preparation of Capital Improvement Plan.
166 167 168	Ms. Cloutier-Cabral commented the Policy Committee did a great job with this, it is appreciated. Ms. Lavallee thanked the Facilities Committee; as well, it was a good collaboration.
169 170	Voting: all aye, motion carried.
171 172	ii. BDFF-R-CIP Worksheet
173	Ms. Lavallee reported the amount on the top was updated to \$20,000 to reflect the same as the policy. No other
174	changes since the 1^{st} reading. She asked for any questions, none heard.
175	
176 177	A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by Ms. Foss to approve policy BDFF-R-CIP Worksheet. Voting: all aye, motion carried.
178	
179	iii. IGA-Curriculum Development
180	Ms. Lavallee reported there are no changes since the 1st reading. She asked for any questions or comments, none
181	heard.
182	
183	A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by Ms. Foss to approve policy IGA-Curriculum
184	Development.
185	Voting: all aye, motion carried.
186 187	iv. IMCD Thoughy Animals
188	iv. IMGB-Therapy Animals Ms. Lavallee reported there are no changes since the 1 st reading. She asked for any questions or comments, none
189 190	heard.
191 192	A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by Ms. Foss to approve policy IMGB-Therapy Animals. Voting: all aye, motion carried.
193	EII Dublic Access to Cabael District Decords
194	v. EH-Public Access to School District Records
195 196 197	Ms. Lavallee reported there are no changes since the 1 st reading. She asked for any questions or comments, none heard. She asked for any additional questions or comments, none heard.
198 199	A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by Ms. Foss to approve policy EH-Public Access to School District Records.
200 201	Voting: all aye, motion carried.
202	vi. EH-R-Public Access to School District Records "Right to Know Requests"
203	Ms. Lavallee reported upon further review from administration, updates are requested and indicated in red text and
204	deletions are crossed out. This will be brought back for another reading prior to adoption. She asked for any
205	questions or comments, none heard.
206	vii. EH-F (1)-Request for Waiver of Electronic Communication Record Charge
207 208	Ms. Lavallee reported there are no changes since the 1 st reading. She asked for any questions or comments, none heard.
209 210	A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by Ms. Foss to approve policy EH-F (1)-Request for
210	11 1110 11011 was made by 1115. Edvance and BECONDED by 1115. I oss to approve policy E11-1 (1)-Request for

viii. EH-F (2)-Affidavit of Indigency for Waiver of Electronic Communication Charge

Ms. Lavallee reported there are no changes since the 1st reading. She asked for any questions or comments, none heard.

Waiver of Electronic Communication Record Charge.

Voting: all aye, motion carried.

211

212213

218 219

220

A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by Ms. Foss to approve policy EH-F (2)-Affidavit of Indigency for Waiver of Electronic Communication Charge.

Voting: all aye, motion carried.

221 222 223

224

225

b. Withdrawals

i. BEDG-R-Access to Minutes and Public Records

Ms. Lavallee reported this policy is incorporated into EH and EH-R and is not needed. We can withdraw it ask long as we follow procedures within the law. She asked for any questions or comments, none heard.

226 227 228

229

A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by Ms. Foss to approve the withdrawal of policy BEDG-R-Access to Minutes and Public Records.

230

Voting: all aye, motion carried.

231 232

ii. IGD-Curriculum Adoption

233

Ms. Lavallee reported policy IGD is incorporated into policy IGA. She is recommending it be withdrawn. She asked for any questions or comments, none heard.

234 235 236

A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by Ms. Foss to approve the withdrawal of policy IGD-Curriculum Adoption.

237 238

Voting: all aye, motion carried.

239 240

241 242

iii. JLCE-R-Emergency Information Form

Ms. Lavallee reported this policy; JLCE-R is not used, and is obsolete. It is an administrative form and is constantly being updated by administration. We don't feel we need it and recommends withdrawing it. She asked for any questions or comments, none heard.

243 244 245

246

249

250

251

252

A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by Ms. Foss to approve the withdrawal of policy JLCE-R-Emergency Information Form.

Voting: all aye, motion carried.

247 248

IX. **ACTION ITEMS** a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting

A MOTION was made by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral and SECONDED by Ms. Lavallee to approve the minutes of December 17, 2024 as written.

Voting: all aye, motion carried.

253 254 255

A MOTION was made by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral and SECONDED by Ms. Lavallee to approve the nonpublic minutes of December 17, 2024 as written.

Voting: seven ayes and one abstention from Ms. Anzalone, motion carried.

257 258 259

256

PUBLIC COMMENTS

The public comment section of the agenda was read. Superintendent called out all the phone numbers and names joined in the meeting asking if they wanted to comment.

261 262 263

264 265

266

260

Ms. Mary Golding voiced the NH Dance Institute, Read-A-Thon and Spelling Bee, so exciting, there is so much going on. Even though she does agree with our amazing business administrator about not spending unspent funds on field trips because it does set a precedent, she was one of those popcorn purchasers for the fundraiser for the Europe trip and is more than willing to participate and contribute to any fundraiser for the D.C. trip. Coach Levesque, great man, she actually knows him personally. He is a wonderful human. She loved hearing that (Pillow Drive) because she knows our community, it is so supportive of our schools, our children and our neighbors. Please know you are all

267 268

appreciated regardless of the keyboard warriors out there, there a few of them. The staff and the school board; lets' 269

just remember that school board members are all volunteers and put in so much time that it could be a full time job 270

plus they have full time jobs. The teachers, they spend so much time doing additional things volunteering. It is not 9-271

5 and wants you all to know you are so appreciated; this community loves you, thank you all so much. 272

XI. SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS

Ms. Cloutier-Cabral congratulated Mr. Finch and is so glad our beautiful gym is going to be something that honors him and remembers him for his wonderful service. Our Starfish Awards are always a highlight of every meeting. Whenever she hears the nominations, she wonders how you pick someone because everybody is so strong and such a star. Ms. MacPherson is really exceptional and so is everybody else on this list.

Ms. Foss echoes all the kudos said.

Ms. Alley congratulated the nominees and the Starfish Award winner. Ms. Rosana and Ms. Kudlich, thank you for coming and representing here at the school board meeting. That dance program, NHDI, she was at another district that did something like that and the kids loved it and were so excited about it. Thank you to those doing the Pillow Drive, it is amazing that you got so many pillows and for the Policy Committee and Facilities Committee for all their hard work.

Chairman Golding reminded the public that the district office would start accepting declaration for candidacy starting January 22, 2025 for School Board and Budget Committee positions; if you feel you have something to offer please go and sign up.

• NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C)

A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by Mr. Lavoie to enter Non-Public Session to discuss a personnel matter, RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C) at 7:12pm.

Voting: via roll call vote, all aye, motion carried.

RETURN TO PUBLIC SESSION

A MOTION was made to seal the non-public session minutes RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C) by Mr. Lavoie and SECONDED by Ms. Alley.

b 302 *V*

Voting: all aye, motion carried.

XII. ADJOURNMENT

The Board entered public session at 7:33pm.

A MOTION was made by Mr. Lavoie and SECONDED by Ms. Lavallee to adjourn the Board meeting at 7:34pm. Voting: all aye, motion carried.

Respectfully submitted,

309 Kristina Fowler